

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

*** Bill No. ***

Introduced By *****

By Request of

A Bill for an Act entitled: "An Act to revise the funding for certain administrative functions of the Department of Labor and Industry with respect to the Workers' Compensation Act and to certain occupational safety and health laws; amending sections 39-71-1050, 39-71-201, 39-71-435, 50-71-113, 50-71-119, 50-72-106, and 50-73-107, MCA; and providing effective dates."

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Montana:

Section 1. Section 39-71-201, MCA, is amended to read:

"39-71-201. ~~Administration~~ Workers' compensation administration fund. (1) A workers' compensation administration fund is established out of which are to be paid upon lawful appropriation all costs of administering the Workers' Compensation Act ~~and the statutory occupational safety and health acts that the department is required to administer~~, with the exception of the

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

certification of independent contractors provided for in Title 39, chapter 71, part 4, the subsequent injury fund provided for in 39-71-907, and the uninsured employers' fund provided for in 39-71-503. The department shall collect and deposit in the state treasury to the credit of the workers' compensation administration fund:

(a) all fees and penalties provided in 39-71-107, 39-71-205, 39-71-223, 39-71-304, 39-71-307, 39-71-315, 39-71-316, 39-71-401(6), 39-71-2204, 39-71-2205, and 39-71-2337; and

(b) ~~all penalties assessed under 50-71-119; and~~
~~(c)~~ all fees paid by an assessment on paid losses, plus administrative fines and interest provided by this section.

(2) For the purposes of this section, paid losses include the following benefits paid during the preceding calendar year for injuries covered by the Workers' Compensation Act without regard to the application of any deductible whether the employer or the insurer pays the losses:

(a) total compensation benefits paid; and
(b) except for medical benefits in excess of \$200,000 for each occurrence that are exempt from assessment, total

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

medical benefits paid for medical treatment rendered to an injured worker, including hospital treatment and prescription drugs.

(3) Each plan No. 1 employer, plan No. 2 insurer subject to the provisions of this section, and plan No. 3, the state fund, shall file annually on March 1 in the form and containing the information required by the department a report of paid losses pursuant to subsection (2).

(4) Each employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 1, compensation plan No. 2, or compensation plan No. 3, the state fund, shall pay its proportionate share, as determined by the paid losses in the preceding calendar year, of all costs appropriated for the next fiscal year for the purposes of administering and regulating the Workers' Compensation Act and the statutory occupational safety acts that the department is required to administer, with the exception of the certification of independent contractors provided for in Title 39, chapter 71, part 4, the subsequent injury fund provided for in 39-71-907, and the uninsured employers' fund provided for in 39-71-503. In addition, compensation plan No. 3, the state fund, shall pay a proportionate share of these costs based upon paid losses for claims arising before July 1, 1990.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(5) (a) Each employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 1 shall pay ~~an~~ a proportional assessment to fund administrative and regulatory costs. ~~The assessment may be up to 3% of the paid losses paid in the preceding calendar year by or on behalf of the plan No. 1 employer.~~ Any entity, other than the department, that assumes the obligations of an employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 1 is considered to be the employer for the purposes of this section.

Comment [MC1]: "appropriate" deleted from prior draft

(b) An employer formerly enrolled under compensation plan No. 1 shall pay ~~an~~ a proportional assessment to fund administrative and regulatory costs. ~~The assessment may be up to 3% of the paid losses paid in the preceding calendar year by or on behalf of the employer for claims arising out of the time when the employer was enrolled under compensation plan No. 1.~~

Comment [MC2]: "appropriate" deleted from prior draft

(c) By April 30 of each year, the department shall notify employers described in subsections (5) (a) and (5) (b) of the percentage of the assessment that comprises the compensation plan No. 1 proportionate share of administrative and regulatory costs. Payment of the assessment provided for by this subsection (5) must be paid by the employer in:

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

- (i) one installment due on July 1; or
- (ii) two equal installments due on July 1 and December 31 of each year.

(d) If an employer fails to timely pay to the department the assessment under this section, the department may impose on the employer an administrative fine of \$500 plus interest on the delinquent amount at the annual interest rate of 12%. Administrative fines and interest must be deposited in the workers' compensation administration fund.

(6) (a) Compensation plan No. 3, the state fund, shall pay ~~an~~ a proportional assessment to fund administrative and regulatory costs attributable to claims arising before July 1, 1990. ~~The assessment may be up to 3% of the paid losses paid in the preceding calendar year for claims arising before July 1, 1990.~~ As required by 39-71-2352, the state fund may not pass along to insured employers the cost of the assessment for administrative and regulatory costs that is attributable to claims arising before July 1, 1990.

Comment [MC3]: "appropriate" deleted from prior draft

- (b) Payment of the assessment must be paid in:
 - (i) one installment due on July 1; or

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(ii) two equal installments due on July 1 and December 31 of each year.

(c) If the state fund fails to timely pay to the department the assessment under this section, the department may impose on the state fund an administrative fine of \$500 plus interest on the delinquent amount at the annual interest rate of 12%. Administrative fines and interest must be deposited in the workers' compensation administration fund.

(7) (a) Each employer insured under compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3, the state fund, shall pay a premium surcharge to fund administrative and regulatory costs. The premium surcharge must be collected by each plan No. 2 insurer and by plan No. 3, the state fund, from each employer that it insures. The premium surcharge must be stated as a separate cost on an insured employer's policy or on a separate document submitted to the insured employer and must be identified as "workers' compensation regulatory assessment surcharge". The premium surcharge must be excluded from the definition of premiums for all purposes, including computation of insurance producers' commissions or premium taxes. However, an insurer may cancel a workers' compensation policy for nonpayment of the premium

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

surcharge. When collected, assessments may not constitute an element of loss for the purpose of establishing rates for workers' compensation insurance but, for the purpose of collection, must be treated as a separate cost imposed upon insured employers.

(b) The amount to be funded by the premium surcharge ~~may be up to 3% of the paid losses paid in the preceding calendar year by or on behalf of all plan No. 2 insurers and may be up to 3% of paid losses for claims arising on or after July 1, 1990, for plan No. 3, the state fund, plus or minus any adjustments as provided by subsection (7) (f),~~ 1. The amount to be funded must be divided by the total premium paid by all employers enrolled under compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3 during the preceding calendar year. A single premium surcharge rate, applicable to all employers enrolled in compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3, must be calculated annually by the department by not later than April 30. The resulting rate, expressed as a percentage, is levied against the premium paid by each employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3 in the next fiscal year.

(c) On or before April 30 of each year, the department, in consultation with the advisory organization

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

designated pursuant to 33-16-1023, shall notify plan No. 2 insurers and plan No. 3, the state fund, of the premium surcharge percentage to be effective for policies written or renewed annually on and after July 1 of that year.

(d) The premium surcharge must be paid whenever the employer pays a premium to the insurer. Each insurer shall collect the premium surcharge levied against every employer that it insures. Each insurer shall pay to the department all money collected as a premium surcharge within 20 days of the end of the calendar quarter in which the money was collected. If an insurer fails to timely pay to the department the premium surcharge collected under this section, the department may impose on the insurer an administrative fine of \$500 plus interest on the delinquent amount at the annual interest rate of 12%. Administrative fines and interest must be deposited in the workers' compensation administration fund.

(e) If an employer fails to remit to an insurer the total amount due for the premium and premium surcharge, the amount received by the insurer must be applied to the premium surcharge first and the remaining amount applied to the premium due.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(f) The amount actually collected as a premium surcharge in a given year must be compared to the assessment on the paid losses paid in the preceding year. Any excess amount collected must be deducted from the amount to be collected as a premium surcharge in the following year. The amount collected that is less than the assessed amount must be added to the amount to be collected as a premium surcharge in the following year.

(8) By July 1, an insurer under compensation plan No. 2 that pays benefits in the preceding calendar year but that will not collect any premium for coverage in the following fiscal year shall pay ~~an~~ a proportional assessment ~~of up to 3% of paid losses paid in the preceding calendar year.~~ The department shall determine and notify the insurer by April 30 of each year of the amount that is due by July 1.

Comment [MC4]: "appropriate" deleted from prior draft

(9) An employer that makes a first-time application for permission to enroll under compensation plan No. 1 shall pay an assessment of \$500 within 15 days of being granted permission by the department to enroll under compensation plan No. 1.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(10) The department shall deposit all funds received pursuant to this section in the state treasury, as provided in this section.

(11) The administration fund must be debited with expenses incurred by the department in the general administration of the provisions of this chapter, including the salaries of its members, officers, and employees and the travel expenses of the members, officers, and employees, as provided for in 2-18-501 through 2-18-503, incurred while on the business of the department either within or without the state.

(12) Disbursements from the administration fund must be made after being approved by the department upon claim for disbursement.

(13) The department may assess and collect the workers' compensation regulatory assessment surcharge from uninsured employers, as defined in 39-71-501, that fail to properly comply with the coverage requirements of the Workers' Compensation Act. Any amounts collected by the department pursuant to this subsection must be deposited in the workers' compensation administration fund."

{*Internal References to 39-71-201:*

39-71-306x 39-71-306 x 39-71-320x 39-71-435a

39-71-1050x 50-71-113a 50-71-113a 50-71-119a }

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

Section 2. Section 39-71-435, MCA, is amended to read:

"39-71-435. Workers' compensation and employers' liability insurance -- optional deductibles. (1) An insurer issuing a workers' compensation or an employer's liability insurance policy may offer to the policyholder, as part of the policy or by endorsement, optional deductibles for benefits payable under the policy consistent with the standards contained in subsection (3).

(2) The advisory organization designated under 33-16-1023 may develop and file a deductible plan or plans on behalf of its members consistent with the standards contained in subsection (3).

(3) The commissioner of insurance shall approve a deductible plan that is in accordance with the following standards:

(a) Claimants' rights are properly protected and claimants' benefits are paid without regard to the deductible.

(b) Premium reductions reflect the type and level of the deductible, consistent with accepted actuarial standards.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(c) Premium reductions for deductibles are determined before application of any experience modification, premium surcharge, or premium discount.

(d) Recognition is given to policyholder characteristics, including but not limited to size, financial capabilities, nature of activities, and number of employees.

(e) The policyholder is liable to the insurer for the deductible amount in regard to benefits paid for compensable claims.

(f) The insurer pays all of the deductible amount applicable to a compensable claim to the person or provider entitled to benefits and then seeks reimbursement from the policyholder for the applicable deductible amount.

(g) Failure by the policyholder to reimburse deductible amounts to the insurer is treated under the policy as nonpayment of premium.

(h) Losses subject to the deductible must be reported and recorded as losses for purposes of calculating rates for a policyholder on the same basis as losses under policies providing first dollar coverage.

(4) The state compensation insurance fund, plan No. 3, may adopt the plan filed by the designated advisory

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

organization or adopt an optional deductible plan that meets the requirements of this section.

(5) For purposes of 39-71-201, ~~and~~ 39-71-915, and [section 8], liability for assessments must be ascertained without regard to application of any deductible, whether the employer or the insurer pays the losses. For all other taxes and assessments based on premium, the amount of premium or assessment must be determined after application of the deductible."

{Internal References to 39-71-435:
33-16-1023x }

Section 3. Section 39-71-1050, MCA, is amended to read:

"39-71-1050. Assessment for stay-at-work/return-to-work assistance fund -- definition.

(1) (a) The assistance fund must be maintained by assessing employers insured by plan No. 1, plan No. 2, and plan No. 3 an amount as provided in subsections (2) through (10).

(b) The board of investments shall invest the money in the assistance fund. The investment income must be deposited in the assistance fund.

(2) The assessment amount is the total amount paid by the assistance fund in the preceding fiscal year less other

Comment [MC5]: Changed to reflect deletion of former section 3.

Comment [MC6]: Section 39-71-915 removed because there are no amendments to the section.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

realized income that is deposited in the assistance fund. Allocation of the total assessment amount among employers insured by plan No. 1, plan No. 2, and plan No. 3 must be based on each plan's proportionate share of money expended from the assistance fund for the calendar year preceding the year in which the assessment is collected.

(3) On or before May 31 of each year, the department shall notify each plan No. 1 employer, plan No. 2 insurer, and plan No. 3, the state fund, of the amount to be assessed for the ensuing fiscal year. On or before April 30 of each year, the department shall consult with the advisory organization designated under 33-16-1023 and notify plan No. 2 insurers and plan No. 3, the state fund, of the premium surcharge rate to be effective for policies written or renewed on or after July 1 in that year.

(4) The portion of the plan No. 1 assessment assessed against an individual plan No. 1 employer is the amount actually expended by the assistance fund on behalf of injured workers employed by that plan No. 1 employer. A group of employers insured jointly under plan No. 1 is considered to be an individual employer for the purposes of this subsection.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(5) After subtracting plan No. 1 assessments from the total assessment, the department shall determine the surcharge rate for plan No. 2 insurers and plan No. 3, the state fund, by dividing the remaining portion of the assessment by the total amount of premiums paid by employers insured under plan No. 2 or plan No. 3 in the previous calendar year. The numerator for the calculation must be adjusted as provided in subsection (9).

(6) Employers insured under plan No. 2 or plan No. 3 shall pay their portion of the assessment in a surcharge on premiums for policies written or renewed annually on or after July 1.

(7) (a) Each plan No. 2 insurer and plan No. 3, the state fund, shall collect from its policyholders the assessment premium surcharge provided for in subsection (5). When collected, the assessment premium surcharge may not constitute an element of loss for the purpose of establishing rates for workers' compensation insurance but, for the purpose of collection, must be treated as separate costs imposed upon insured employers. The total of this assessment premium surcharge must be stated as a separate cost on an insured employer's policy or on a separate document submitted by the insured employer and must be

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

identified as "workers' compensation stay-at-work/return-to-work assistance fund surcharge". Each assessment premium surcharge must be shown as a percentage of the total workers' compensation policyholder premium. This assessment premium surcharge must be collected at the same time and in the same manner as the premium for the coverage. The assessment premium surcharge must be excluded from the definition of premium for all purposes, including computation of insurance producers' commissions or premium taxes, except that an insurer may cancel a workers' compensation policy for nonpayment of the assessment premium surcharge. Cancellation must be in accordance with the procedures applicable to the nonpayment of premium.

(b) If an employer fails to remit to an insurer the total amount due for the premium and assessment premium surcharge, the amount received by the insurer must be applied to the assessment premium surcharge described in 39-71-201 first, then to the assessment premium surcharge described in [section 8], then to the assessment premium surcharge in this section, and then to the surcharge in 39-71-915, with any remaining amount applied to the premium due.

Comment [MC7]: Changed to reflect renumbering of bill.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(8) (a) The department shall deposit all assessments due under this section into the assistance fund.

(b) Each plan No. 1 employer shall pay its assessment due under this section by July 1.

(c) Each plan No. 2 insurer and plan No. 3, the state fund, shall remit to the department all assessment premium surcharges collected during a calendar quarter no later than 20 days following the end of the quarter.

(d) If a plan No. 1 employer, a plan No. 2 insurer, or plan No. 3, the state fund, fails to timely pay to the department the assessment or assessment premium surcharge under this section, the department may impose on the plan No. 1 employer, the plan No. 2 insurer, or plan No. 3, the state fund, an administrative fine of \$100 plus interest on the delinquent amount at the annual interest rate of 12%. Administrative fines and interest must be deposited in the assistance fund.

(9) Each year, the department shall compare the amount of the assessment premium surcharge actually collected pursuant to subsection (5) with the amount assessed and upon which the premium surcharge was calculated. The amount undercollected or overcollected in any given year must be used as an adjustment to the

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

numerator for the following year's assessment premium surcharge as provided in subsection (5).

(10) If the total assessment is less than \$100,000 for any year, the department may defer the assessment for that year and add that amount to the assessment amount for the subsequent year.

(11) As used in this section, "money expended" means expenditures for stay-at-work/return-to-work assistance from the assistance fund."

{*Internal References to 39-71-1050: None* }

Section 4. Section 50-71-113, MCA, is amended to read:

"50-71-113. Administrative authority -- funding. (1) The department has authority to administer the provisions of this part.

(2) In addition to administering the provisions of this part, the department may:

- (a) promote occupational safety and health;
- (b) educate employers and employees in occupational safety and health matters;
- (c) conduct research regarding occupational safety and health data, topics, and techniques; and

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(d) investigate occupational injuries, illnesses, and deaths involving public sector employees.

(3) The department may develop and operate a statewide employment safety program. The statewide employment safety program may include but is not limited to:

- (a) a safety awareness component;
- (b) an employee education component;
- (c) an employer education component; and
- (d) industry-specific initiatives.

(4) The activities of the department under the provisions of this part are funded by the ~~workers' compensation~~ occupational safety and health administration fund provided in ~~39-71-201~~ [section 8].

Comment [MC8]: Changed to reflect renumbering of bill.

(5) The department may accept, receive, and administer gifts, grants, or other funds from public or private agencies and from the United States for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this part. Funds received by the department under this subsection must be deposited into the fund provided for in ~~39-71-201~~ [section 8]."

Comment [MC9]: Changed to reflect renumbering of bill.

{*Internal References to 50-71-113: None* }

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

Section 5. Section 50-71-119, MCA, is amended to read:

"50-71-119. Report of inspection -- violations -- penalty -- appeal process. (1) (a) The department shall make a written report of each inspection that it conducts under 50-71-118.

(b) The inspection report must include a list of violations of standards that the inspector discovered during the inspection. A violation of a standard by a public sector employee is attributable to the public sector employer for the purposes of this part.

(c) The department shall provide a copy of the inspection report to the public sector employer and to a representative of a labor organization that represents public sector employees at the workplace that was inspected.

(d) The public sector employer shall post a copy of the list of hazards included in the inspection report at one or more visible locations at the workplace that is the subject of the inspection report. The posting must be in a location likely to be seen by employees at that workplace.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(2) The department may issue a written citation to the public sector employer for a violation of a standard. The citation must specify:

- (a) the nature of the violation;
- (b) the standard that was violated; and
- (c) a timeframe within which the public sector employer is required to correct the violation.

(3) (a) The department may impose upon a public sector employer a monetary penalty of not more than \$1,000 for each violation for which a citation has been issued.

(b) The department may, in its sole discretion, waive or reduce a penalty under this subsection (3) if the public sector employer timely corrects or cures the violation for which the penalty was imposed.

(c) Monetary penalties collected pursuant to this subsection (3) must be deposited into the ~~workers' compensation~~ occupational safety and health administration fund provided for in ~~39-71-201~~ [section 8].

Comment [MC10]: Changed to reflect renumbering of bill.

(4) (a) A public sector employer may appeal a citation or a penalty.

(b) An appeal to the department must be in writing and made within 30 days of the issuance of the citation.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(c) The appeal of a citation or a penalty is conducted as a contested case under Title 2, chapter 4."

{Internal References to 50-71-119:
39-71-201a }

Section 6. Section 50-72-106, MCA, is amended to read:

"50-72-106. Safety and industrial health consultation services authorized -- recovery of expenses. (1) The department may provide onsite safety and industrial health consultation services to mine operators that request onsite safety and industrial health consultation services.

(2) The department may not charge for the consultation provided by this section, but it may recover from the mine operator the cost of test kits, sampling media, associated laboratory fees, and other reasonable expenses incurred during the consultation.

(3) Expenses recovered pursuant to subsection (2) must be deposited into the occupational safety and health administration fund provided for in [section 8]."

{Internal References to 50-72-106: None }

Section 7. Section 50-73-107, MCA, is amended to read:

Comment [MC11]: Changed to reflect renumbering of bill.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

"50-73-107. Safety and industrial health consultation services authorized -- recovery of expenses. (1) The department may provide onsite safety and industrial health consultation services to mine operators that request onsite safety and industrial health consultation services.

(2) The department may not charge for the consultation provided by this section, but it may recover from the mine operator the cost of test kits, sampling media, associated laboratory fees, and other reasonable expenses incurred during the consultation.

(3) Expenses recovered pursuant to subsection (2) must be deposited into the occupational safety and health administration fund provided for in [section 8]."

{Internal References to 50-73-107: None }

NEW SECTION. **Section 8. Occupational safety and health administration fund.** (1) An occupational safety and health administration fund is established out of which are to be paid upon lawful appropriation all costs of the department in administering Title 50, chapters 71, 72, and 73, as of July 1, 2016. The department shall collect and deposit in the state treasury to the credit of the occupational safety and health administration fund:

Comment [MC12]: Changed to reflect renumbering of bill.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

- (a) all penalties assessed under 50-71-119;
- (b) all expenses recovered under 50-72-106 and 50-73-107; and
- (c) all fees paid by an assessment on paid losses, plus administrative fines and interest provided by this section.

(2) For the purposes of this section, the term "paid losses" have the same meaning as provided by 39-71-201.

(3) Each plan No. 1 employer, plan No. 2 insurer subject to the provisions of this section, and plan No. 3, the state fund, shall file annually on March 1 in the form and containing the information required by the department a report of paid losses pursuant to subsection (2).

(4) Each employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 1, compensation plan No. 2, or compensation plan No. 3, the state fund, shall pay its proportionate share, as determined by the paid losses in the preceding calendar year, of all costs appropriated for the next fiscal year for the purposes of administering Title 50, chapters 71, 71, and 73.

(5) (a) Each employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 1 shall pay an assessment to fund administrative and regulatory costs. Any entity, other than the

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

department, that assumes the obligations of an employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 1 is considered to be the employer for the purposes of this section.

(b) An employer formerly enrolled under compensation plan No. 1 shall pay an assessment to fund administrative and regulatory costs.

(c) By April 30 of each year, the department shall notify employers described in subsections (5) (a) and (5) (b) of the percentage of the assessment that comprises the compensation plan No. 1 proportionate share of administrative and regulatory costs. Payment of the assessment provided for by this subsection (5) must be paid by the employer in:

(i) one installment due on July 1; or
(ii) two equal installments due on July 1 and December 31 of each year.

(d) If an employer fails to timely pay to the department the assessment under this section, the department may impose on the employer an administrative fine of \$500 plus interest on the delinquent amount at the annual interest rate of 12%. Administrative fines and interest must be deposited in the occupational safety and health administration fund.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(6) (a) Each employer insured under compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3, the state fund, shall pay a premium surcharge to fund administrative and regulatory costs. The premium surcharge must be collected by each plan No. 2 insurer and by plan No. 3, the state fund, from each employer that it insures. The premium surcharge must be stated as a separate cost on an insured employer's policy or on a separate document submitted to the insured employer and must be identified as "occupational safety and health regulatory assessment surcharge". The premium surcharge must be excluded from the definition of premiums for all purposes, including computation of insurance producers' commissions or premium taxes. However, an insurer may cancel a workers' compensation policy for nonpayment of the premium surcharge. When collected, assessments may not constitute an element of loss for the purpose of establishing rates for workers' compensation insurance but, for the purpose of collection, must be treated as a separate cost imposed upon insured employers.

(b) The amount to be funded by the premium surcharge, plus or minus any adjustments as provided by subsection (6) (f), must be divided by the total premium paid by all employers enrolled under compensation plan No. 2 or plan

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

No. 3 during the preceding calendar year. A single premium surcharge rate, applicable to all employers enrolled in compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3, must be calculated annually by the department by not later than April 30. The resulting rate, expressed as a percentage, is levied against the premium paid by each employer enrolled under compensation plan No. 2 or plan No. 3 in the next fiscal year.

(c) On or before April 30 of each year, the department, in consultation with the advisory organization designated pursuant to 33-16-1023, shall notify plan No. 2 insurers and plan No. 3, the state fund, of the premium surcharge percentage to be effective for policies written or renewed annually on and after July 1 of that year.

(d) The premium surcharge must be paid whenever the employer pays a premium to the insurer. Each insurer shall collect the premium surcharge levied against every employer that it insures. Each insurer shall pay to the department all money collected as a premium surcharge within 20 days of the end of the calendar quarter in which the money was collected. If an insurer fails to timely pay to the department the premium surcharge collected under this section, the department may impose on the insurer an

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

administrative fine of \$500 plus interest on the delinquent amount at the annual interest rate of 12%. Administrative fines and interest must be deposited in the occupational safety and health administration fund.

(e) If an employer fails to remit to an insurer the total amount due for the premium and premium surcharge, the amount received by the insurer must be applied to the premium surcharge first and the remaining amount applied to the premium due.

(f) The amount actually collected as a premium surcharge in a given year must be compared to the assessment on the paid losses paid in the preceding year. Any excess amount collected must be deducted from the amount to be collected as a premium surcharge in the following year. The amount collected that is less than the assessed amount must be added to the amount to be collected as a premium surcharge in the following year.

(7) By July 1, an insurer under compensation plan No. 2 that pays benefits in the preceding calendar year but that will not collect any premium for coverage in the following fiscal year shall pay an assessment. The department shall determine and notify the insurer by April 30 of each year of the amount that is due by July 1.

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

(8) An employer that makes a first-time application for permission to enroll under compensation plan No. 1 shall pay an assessment of \$500 within 15 days of being granted permission by the department to enroll under compensation plan No. 1.

(9) The department shall deposit all funds received pursuant to this section in the state treasury, as provided in this section.

(10) The administration fund must be debited with expenses incurred by the department in the general administration of the provisions of Title 50, chapters 71, 72, and 73, including the salaries of its members, officers, and employees and the travel expenses of the members, officers, and employees, as provided for in 2-18-501 through 2-18-503, incurred while on the business of the department either within or without the state.

(11) Disbursements from the administration fund must be made after being approved by the department upon claim for disbursement.

(12) The department may assess and collect the occupational safety and health assessment surcharge from uninsured employers, as defined in 39-71-501, that fail to properly comply with the coverage requirements of the

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

Workers' Compensation Act. Any amounts collected by the department pursuant to this subsection must be deposited in the occupational safety and health administration fund.

NEW SECTION. **Section 9. {standard} Codification.**

[Section 8] is intended to be codified as an integral part of Title 50, chapter 71, part 1, and the provisions of Title 50, chapter 71, part 1, apply to [section 8].

NEW SECTION. **Section 10. Transition.** The department of labor and industry shall prepare the billing statements for assessments that will be due on July 1, 2016, according to the provisions of [this act], even though the billing statements are prepared prior to the effective date provided for in [section 11(1)].

Comment [MC13]: Added to clarify the billing for the July 1, 2016, assessments.

NEW SECTION. **Section 11. {standard} Effective dates.**

(1) Except as provided in subsection (2), [this act] is effective July 1, 2016.

(2) [Section 10] and this section are effective July 1, 2015.

-END-

CD-ROM Draft Copy

Last printed 8/25/2014 3:28:00 PM
2015 wc & safety assessment mec 821 dotm.dotm

prepared by:

Mark Cadwallader
agency counsel
Department of Labor and Industry
406.444.0280
mcadwallader@mt.gov

DRAFT